
Wolfeboro Planning Board  1 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

WOLFEBORO PLANNING BOARD 
PUBLIC HEARING & WORK SESSION 

  January 19, 2010 
MINUTES 

 
Members Present:

 

  Kathy Barnard, Chairman, Stacie Jo Pope, Vice-Chairman, Kristi Ginter, Selectman’s 
Representative, Chris Franson, Jennifer Haskell, Fae Moore, Members. 

Members Absent:
 

  Richard O’Donnell, Member, Steve Buck, Dave Alessandroni, Alternates. 

Staff Present:
 

  Rob Houseman, Director of Planning & Development, Lee Ann Keathley, Secretary. 

Chairman Barnard opened the meeting at 7:01 PM. 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Petition Warrant Article 
Establish a Historic District Commission that oversees the Cotton Mountain portion of the existing 
Historic District 
 
Kathy Barnard reviewed said Petition Warrant Article. 
 
Kristi Ginter recused herself; noting she owns property in the District. 
 
Rob Houseman reviewed the statutory requirements relative to Petition Warrant Articles. 
 
Chairman Barnard opened the public hearing. 
 
Suzanne Ryan stated she hopes the warrant article would come second on the ballot to the Petition Warrant 
Article to abolish the HDC; noting said article is a fallback position if the Petition Warrant Article relative to 
abolishing the Historic District Commission passes.  She stated the Cotton Mountain residents do not have an 
issue with having a Commission; noting there are 16 residents in the Cotton Mountain District and said article 
would preserve and protect Cotton Mountain. 
 
Pamela McKittrick read her statement, see attached. 
 
Bruce Fichter, 157 North Wolfeboro Road, Chairman of the HDC, stated at the HDC’s 1/12/10 meeting the 
Board, by majority vote, asked him speak on their behalf that if in fact the Historic District Commission is 
abolished that they would and do support the creation of an oversight for the Historic District of Cotton 
Mountain. 
 
Kristi Ginter, Forest Road & 579 Stoneham Road, questioned whether the article is legal as the territories of 
the district are not known and if the Planning Board is aware of the territories that such should be disclosed. 
 
Paul Panaccione, 11 Trask Mountain Road, stated this warrant article and the companion warrant article 
represent the majority of the current HDC and represents a desperate attempt on their part to salvage an HDC 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  2 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

they see being abolished.  He stated the article was hastily put together and feels it is illegal; questioning the 
legality of creating a Commission when one currently exists. 
 
Kathy Barnard stated the Board received an opinion from Town Counsel stating there is no statutory authority 
for limiting a commission to one district.  She stated Town Counsel has indicated that the petitioners should 
have submitted an article that amended the district boundaries by eliminating the North Wolfeboro District 
leaving only the Cotton Mountain District and then vote to establish a new HDC which would supervise only 
the remaining Cotton Mountain District. 
 
Suzanne Ryan stated the warrant article states “…with the exception of 175-197 A (1-9)” which is North 
Wolfeboro Historic District exclusively therefore, she believes the territories have been defined.  She stated the 
warrant article excludes the oversight of the North Wolfeboro Historic District.  She stated the following 
language of the article is placed after the signatures; “Current Cotton Mountain Historic boundaries would 
remain unchanged as established.” She stated such should address Town Counsel’s statement. 
 
Kristi Ginter stated she believes Town Counsel is saying that there could be potential legal challenges 
because the North Wolfeboro District is not eliminated by Town vote.  She stated the boundaries of such would 
have to be eliminated. 
 
Rob Houseman stated that Town Counsel provided guidance that the petition warrant article needs to go 
forward onto the warrant however, discussion should occur.  He stated the petition does not affect the 
boundaries of the current historic district (North Wolfeboro & Cotton Mountain) and creates a commission that 
applies specifically to the Cotton Mountain portion.  He stated the district boundaries remain unchanged as 
noted in the existing zoning.  He stated the Planning Board has to hold a public hearing and vote to either 
recommend or not recommend the article.  He read Town Counsel’s opinion. 
 
Linda Murray questioned whether language was left off of the presentation and whether such would be on the 
ballot. 
 
Stacie Jo Pope stated the complete article was distributed to the public. 
 
Rob Houseman stated Town Counsel has not yet finalized the language for the ballot. 
 
There being no further questions or comments, Chairman Barnard closed the public hearing. 
 
Jennifer Haskell expressed concern for how the article is phrased and potential litigation; noting the article 
does not address the boundary issue. 
 

 

It was moved by Chris Franson and seconded by Fae Moore to not recommend the Petition Warrant 
Article to Establish a Historic District Commission that oversees the Cotton Mountain portion of the 
existing Historic District.  All members voted in favor.  The motion passed. 

Petition Warrant Article 
Abolish the Historic District Commission 
 
Kathy Barnard reviewed said article; noting signatures of 100+ voters were needed and 117 names have been 
submitted with the article. 
 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  3 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

Chairman Barnard opened the public hearing. 
 
Paul Panaccione stated the warrant article has 204 certified signatures; noting the Town Clerk recounted the 
signatures. 
 
Bob Klimm, 100 Bickford Road, read his letter, dated 1/19/10, see attached. 
 
Stacie Jo Pope asked Mr. Klimm if he is against the Historic District in the sense of keeping the character of a 
Historic District or is opposed to the current management of the HDC. 
 
Bob Klimm replied he is opposed to the current implementation. 
 
Stacie Jo Pope verified Mr. Klimm is in favor of rules and regulations in regard to improvements to a home 
because it maintains the character of the neighborhood. 
 
Virginia Panaccione, 11 Trask Mountain Road, stated she supports the warrant article to abolish the Historic 
District Commission.  She stated one year ago she spoke in public many times to support the retention of the 
Historic District and innocently believed that if the people were able to save the Historic District the 
Commission would recognize the need to improve their behavior.  She stated when the Historic District was 
not abolished the Commission then seemed to have a mandate to rule.  She stated the HDC will not listen or 
consider public input or concern with no help to residents and silence Commission members who disagree 
with them.  She stated compromise is impossible with this Board.  She stated requests have been made to the 
BOS to help them with the HDC; noting there has been no resulting change.  She stated the warrant article is a 
citizen’s request to end the mistreatment.  She stated Attorney Bernie Waugh was hired by the BOS to 
research the irregularities on the Commission; noting a report was produced with a conclusion that there is a 
lack of courtesy and respect on the HDC.  She noted expenses to the Town for having two attorneys review 
the issues (Attorney Sager).  She stated the Commission made a motion on 1/12/10; “If the Historic District 
Commission survives the March vote then the Commission will ask the Selectmen to pay for a mediation 
session for themselves with a lawyer.”  She stated the motion passed, thus the Commission admitted that they 
have personality problems and animosity.  She questioned the cost relative to hiring the lawyers and 
questioned why the citizens and taxpayers should pay for their admittance of personality problems.  She 
questioned the reputation of the Town as a result of the HDC. 
 
Stacie Jo Pope questioned whether Mrs. Panaccione likes the idea of keeping the character of her 
neighborhood. 
 
Virginia Panaccione replied yes, stating she spoke for the retention of the Historic District last year.  She stated 
the resignation of the entire Commission was requested of the BOS however, such was not done. 
 
Paul Panaccione, 11 Trask Mountain Road, read his statement, see attached. 
 
Chuck Farrell, 288 Haines Hill Road, stated that the Ginter’s and he have had legal expenses as well and have 
had to deal with harassment from the HDC.  He stated there is more of a cost than just the dollar cost; to 
include time and harassment.  He stated he would like to see the whole Board gone. 
 
Lawrence Clapp, 88 North Wolfeboro Road, reviewed the history of the denial of his application for a deck and 
stated that he was told by a certain member of the Commission that he was being punished because he had 
the audacity not to come hat in hand and scrape before these people and ask their permission.  He stated he 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  4 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

thinks it’s sad that the Commission is run with a sandbox mentality and the members of this Town should vote 
to get rid of them post haste. 
 
Beverly Woods, 401 Haines Hill Road, stated last year she put together the website “topreservewolfeboro.org” 
to convince voters to keep the Historic District in tact.  However, like her neighbors she has come to repent her 
support of the Historic District for all the aforementioned reasons.  She stated the HDC actively prevents 
saving of historic buildings in the District.  She stated she is for historic preservation however, unfortunately 
this Commission is preventing people from maintaining and that, she finds unconscionable and tragic. 
 
Fran Cline, Trask Mountain Road, stated she is in support of the petition and read the following statement from 
Susan Whitesman, North Wolfeboro Road; “I am unable to attend this meeting but would like to express my 
support for the petition to abolish the HDC pursuant to RSA 673:18.” 
 
Kristi Ginter, Forest Road & 579 Stoneham Road, stated she supports the petition.  In regard to the expenses 
related to the her case, she requested the Town Manager to provide an accounting of such; noting as of 6/1/09 
the total was $10,738.53 and since that time there has been an additional $4,000+ expended.  She stated 
such is not reflected in the HDC budget because much of the cost came out of the BOS’ budget.  She clarified 
that the settlement between the Town and herself was a mutually agreed upon stipulation; noting such was not 
ordered by the court. 
 
Jim Ladd, North Wolfeboro, stated he is in agreement with the petition; noting he was appointed as an 
Alternate in April 2009 and appointed as a full member in December 2009.  He stated he is embarrassed at 
what the Commission has been doing and how they have treated his neighbors.  He stated he has never seen 
the political game playing that goes on at the meetings rather than being interested in what can be done for the 
community and Wolfeboro area.  He stated there is no willingness to hear what is going on outside the 
meetings.  He stated he likes the idea of a Historic District however, is in favor of abolishing the current HDC. 
 
Bruce Fichter, 157 North Wolfeboro Road, Chairman of the HDC, read the following statement (also attached); 
At the HDC meeting of January 12, 2010 the Commission members voted to have me speak to the Planning 
Board on the Commission’s behalf.  At that meeting there was also a motion passed by majority that the 
commission take a position “to not support the petitioned warrant to abolish the HDC.”  This was a unique and 
interesting vote.  Unique in that the seven voting members present, four voted in favor of that position, with 
none opposed.  Interesting in that there were three abstentions, two of which came from past chairmen and 
one from a newly appointed member at his first meeting.  Interesting also that they are all members of the 
North Wolfeboro Area Association with one being the current president and one the current secretary.  These 
facts are interesting because at its annual meeting in August 2009, the NWAA, these members, along with the 
others present took the position “If the current HDC continues on its existing path for adopted Rules of 
Procedure and Architectural Regulations, they would be forced to present a petition warrant article to abolish 
the HDC” and, the HDC “Had better be ready for the backlash.”  Isn’t it amazing that none of the three had the 
courage of their convictions to vote no, rather than cast a non-vote for the unfortunate set of events that must 
now take place to either support the current HDC in its quest for documentation and fair regulations or see it 
abolished.  Interesting too, that with further discussion at the meeting of the 19th, that the HDC member and 
president of the NWAA stated that “This petition warrant is at least better than the warrant article of last year to 
abolish the Historic Districts, because if this passes everything will go to the building department for oversight.”  
This is an uninformed mistake as I know it.  The Wolfeboro Building Department has prevue over structural 
integrity by code and zoning enforcement but, does not have prevue over the “Protection and Preservation of 
the Historical Character of the Historic Districts.  That is the job of the HDC.  Without the oversight and 
diligence of the Historic District Commission, residents new and old could easily dilute or “water down” the 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  5 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

character and style of the districts and abutters will be powerless to agree or disagree, as long as they follow 
the residential building codes and satisfy the Code Enforcement Officer and possibly without concern for the 
surrounding neighborhood.  As a NH Land Use Board, the HDC of 1987 saw the need for documented rules 
and regulations, as they drafted them, but failed to adopt and certify them, leaving those rules and regulations 
in “LIMBO”, so to speak.  The current HDC adopted Rules of Procedure on November 19, 2009 as well on the 
way to completing its Architectural Regulations.  So in closing, on behalf of the Historic District Commission 
and the two Historic Districts, I ask you, the Planning Board of Wolfeboro, to support the HDC in this endeavor 
by voting to “Not Recommend the Petition Warrant Article to Abolish the Historic District Commission of 
Wolfeboro.”  Without oversight by the HDC the Historic Districts of Wolfeboro will exist on paper and in name 
only. 
 
Suzanne Ryan submitted two letters in opposition to the warrant article; Shaun Smith, 227 Stoneham Road 
and Kevin & Polly Green, 603 Stoneham Road. 
 
Chris Franson read the Green letter, dated 1/15/10 and the Smith letter, dated 1/18/10, see attached. 
 
Suzanne Ryan stated the Commission was formed by Town Meeting in 1976 and in April 1977 the 
Commission started work on the Statement of Objectives and Guidelines and adopted such in May with the 
Application for Certificate of Approval forms.  She reviewed the history of the HDC (1976 through 1996).  She 
stated in 2006 she presented the Commission with examples of Statement of Objective / Preservation 
Guidelines, new applications forms, RSA’s and processes to better carry out responsibilities.  She stated it was 
decided and all agreed to move forward; noting the Commission did so through September 2007.  She stated 
the core reason she joined the Commission was to bring about what she saw as a lack of rules when she 
attended a 2005 meeting and decisions were made without a quorum.  She stated work was set aside in 2007 
& 2008 when a resident in the District took the Town / Commission to court under the Right to Know Law and 
following such work began again on the regulations / Rules of Procedure and on the Design Guidelines / 
regulations.  She stated the Town has a Building Inspector who knows that under RSA 676:9 no building 
permit can be issued without an HDC Certificate of Approval within the District.  She stated the Commission 
worked on and sent to the BOS for adoption an HDC Flow Chart in 2008, revised the formal application plan in 
2008/2009, adopted two streamlined forms to assist applicants with roof repair and minor maintenance 
application in 2009 and adopted and recorded the Rules of Procedure and Regulations that were to go to 
public hearing and with the intent to proceed with Design Guidelines in 2009.  However, the Commission has 
not been able to make great strides on the regulations as at the August 15, 2009 North Wolfeboro Area 
Association (NWAA) began with a proposal by Mr. Panaccione in opposition to the Commission, it was 
decided to create an ad hoc committee and formally notify the BOS regarding the noted concerns; noting Mr. 
Panaccione, the initiator of this action, has an approval that has conditions attached that have not been met to 
date.  She stated after that action, the NWAA has been quite vocal in the dissatisfaction with the Commission 
and has advised the Commission should they proceed they would have no recourse but to put in a warrant 
article to abolish the Commission.  She requested the Planning Board not recommend the warrant article to 
abolish the Commission.  She stated one of the most effective and comprehensive mechanisms to manage 
change in a historic area is to have a Historic District; noting its purpose is to preserve the character of an 
area, manage change and new construction within the regulations.  Therefore, to abolish the Commission 
does not serve that goal rather, it leaves the District open for no historic oversight.  Relative to the Master 
Plan, she stated that if a District is to remain in sync with the components of the ordinance and its purpose, it 
must be compatible with the Master Plan per 674:46 a, IV and Zoning Ordinance or run the risk of being 
declared invalid in a court challenge.  She referenced HCS 7 (to maintain the integrity of existing historic 
districts) and HCS 13 & 14 (protection of properties of historic importance and protected from deterioration 
and/or major incompatible alterations.  Therefore, if there is no Commission these goals cannot be met and 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  6 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

there is no legal Town oversight and effectiveness of any Historic District depends upon the ability of its 
Commission members to carry out its purpose. She referenced Attorney Sager’s email dated 11/5/09 and 
Bernie Waugh’s report (for complete text of Ms. Ryan’s statement, see attached). 
Chris Franson stated that most of the people in the audience are in favor of keeping a Historic District 
Commission however, it comes down to personality and how things are done.  She questioned whether the 
Commission members have considered resigning to have a new Board come into place. 
 
Suzanne Ryan stated it doesn’t matter who the Commission members are because the members are going to 
have to write the regulations and abide by the standards.  She stated two members are up for reappointment 
this year and there are 3 alternate positions; noting such could be a pivotal change.   
 
Jennifer Haskell stated a lot of people are commenting on the treatment received by the HDC however, she 
has not heard from any of the existing Board members that they are attempting to change their conduct during 
meetings to treat the residents with more respect. 
 
Suzanne Ryan stated that if she has personally been blatantly rude to a public member, she now apologizes 
however, she has had much dissatisfaction with some of the Board members and if that flows over, such is 
human nature.  She stated things have been said off camera that haven’t been nice as well. 
 
Jennifer Haskell expressed concern that given the current Board, that people may not want to put themselves 
in a position of stepping onto that Board. 
 
Suzanne Ryan stated the role of the Selectmen is to make appointments and it’s up to them to figure out who 
to appoint; noting the Selectmen have said that they choose not to get into personalities.  She chooses not to 
resign however, chooses to apologize publicly. 
 
Virginia Panaccione stated we (clarifying “we” are concerned neighbors and not the NWAA) have asked 
repeatedly the BOS and the Commission to resign as a group or resign individually.  She stated Attorney 
Sager states the Commission has personality problems and animosity on the Commission which spill out to 
the public. 
 
Todd  Fichter, 4 North Wakefield Road, stated the following (also see attached statement); “What the North 
Wolfeboro Area Association, it’s Ad-Hoc Committee’s, and some current HDC members fail to realize is that 
the HDC is a STATUTORY LAND USE BOARD, GOVERNED BY STATE RSA’S, no different than the 
Planning Board or Zoning Board of Adjustment. NWAA President, and HDC Member, Ken Perry has stated 
that the HDC doesn’t preside over matters of such permanence, such as the Planning Board or ZBA, so they 
shouldn’t be as stringent.   This sentiment echoes the cries from the NWAA and its members to have things go 
back to the way they were before, where residents could use a light touch and neighborly approach to resolve 
their differences.  I agree that residents should be neighborly and resolve differences.  But we aren’t just 
talking about a neighborhood association and it doesn’t always play out like that.  What NWAA members need 
to realize is that they are not isolated or separate from the Town of Wolfeboro.  Sure in North and East 
Wolfeboro we may have 19 miles of open roads with clusters of historic homes, but those open roads and 
historic homes fall under the purview of the Historic District Commission and within the Town of Wolfeboro, 
which means that the Town is liable for another lawsuit similar to one filed in 2004 if the Commission does an 
about face from the direction that it is currently heading. 
With that sentiment in mind, I would like to read an excerpt from the December 16, 2009 Board of Selectmen 
meeting minutes made by Selectman Linda Murray when discussing the HDC.  “The HDC, in the past was run 
as more of a neighborly feel-good group.  What happened was in 2004 there was a lawsuit against this Town 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  7 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

because of the right to know act for not having the kind of material that we needed.  That lawsuit made it very 
clear to us that this Commission could not keep functioning as they were functioning before.  Mr. Waugh is 
saying in one sense it is the way the HDC Ordinance is written and it looks like we have autonomy and 
discretion and personal judgment and on the other hand the regulations and what that case (meaning the 2004 
lawsuit filed against the town) said is that you don’t.  So what the Town really needs to do is have this HDC 
function within the rules and regulations.  They need to have these procedures in order to not leave the Town 
liable again for another lawsuit.  We can’t haul records out of a Chairman’s garage.  We cannot have hand 
written notes, we cannot have it the way it was.  That is the conflict that is there and that is what I hoped the 
mediator would be able to take care of.  Make everyone realize that it can’t be the way it was before; it has to 
be more structured.  I couldn’t have said it any better. 
At our most recent HDC meeting, an Application History compiled from the meeting minutes of the HDC was 
passed out to Commission members in an attempt to enlighten and bring direction to our ongoing process of 
creating and adopting a set of Regulations for this Commission to follow in the future. 
The most glaring revelations ranged from the 29 applications heard by a Commission without the necessary 
quorum present to the seven (7) illegal verbal approvals of applications given by previous Chairman’s of the 
HDC.  It bears pointing out that these numbers may very well be higher due to the information found within the 
file folders of applicants, which has provided further insight into approvals and the types of meetings held.   
Since the HDC has come under the guidance and direction of Chairman Bruce Fichter and Vice-Chairman 
Suzanne Ryan in 2007, a definitive paper trail has been created detailing the applications presented and 
approval process.  HDC Recording Secretary, Amy Capone-Muccio and Administrative Assistant to the 
Planning Department, Terry Tavares are to be commended for this as well.” 
 
Linda Murray stated the court reviewed what the ZBA could do in regard to overturning a decision of the HDC; 
noting such set the precedent that they could throw the whole thing out but it had to be based on standards 
and not on personal points of view.  She stated that as a Selectmen she has struggled with this, have watched 
tapes and seems there are two sides.  She had hoped for mediation however, such has not occurred.  She 
stated she doesn’t know if all the residents will lose by not having a Historic District. 
 
Kristi Ginter stated the only members of the Historic District that are here are the very ones we want to get rid 
of, the ones that we have asked for their resignations.   She stated the people need to decide and currently 
there are 204 people that think they should go. 
 
Ken Perry, resident of North Wolfeboro, President of the North Wolfeboro Area Association, member of the 
Historic District Commission, clarified the role of the NWAA in this process by stating at the NWAA Annual 
Meeting in August 2009 by the vote of 50-0 with 3 abstentions, the membership voted to petition the BOS to 
address some of these issues.  He stated the letter was submitted to the BOS in September and since that 
time the NWAA has not taken any public position on this entire controversy.  He stated some of the members 
of the NWAA have signed the petition and some have spoken this evening however, it is not the position of the 
NWAA to either support or actively work against this petition warrant article. 
 
Jerry Cline, North Wolfeboro, stated he is in favor of the petition. He stated he is in favor of a Historic District 
and the preservation of culture and history and prior to the current Commission it was managed lightly and 
neighborly.  He questioned why the past had to be changed by the new administration.  He expressed concern 
regarding the value system of the Commission.   
 
There being no further questions or comments, Chairman Barnard closed the public hearing. 
 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  8 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

Kathy Barnard expressed concern regarding abolishing the HDC as it would leave the Historic District 
Ordinance unenforceable.  She stated the purpose of the ordinance would not be carried out. 
 
Jennifer Haskell verified the BOS could reappoint a Board. 
 
Rob Houseman stated the Commission could be re-established. 
 
Chris Franson expressed concern that if the HDC is abolished it would be hard to get it back again; feels it is 
unrealistic to think it would be re-established.  She stated she is not in favor of recommending the article. 
 
Jennifer Haskell stated the Commission has not learned to respect one another or the people who live within 
the District and expressed concerned for the treatment of the people in the District.  She stated the 
Commission is not hearing the necessity to reorganize and revise their approach and it is disturbing to hear the 
mistreatment of the people. 
 
Kathy Barnard stated rules and procedures are needed and being addressed and feels there are positive 
things happening within the Commission. 
 
Fae Moore stated there are 204 people who live in the area who are not happy and feels they are being 
treated unfairly and their points are valid. 
 
Stacie Jo Pope agreed with Ms. Moore however, noted that having a zoning district without oversight to it is 
not a good idea from a planning perspective. 
 
Jennifer Haskell stated the Board’s responsibility is to planning and questioned what the people should do. 
 
Stacie Jo Pope stated the people should step up and get appointed to the Commission. 
 
Chris Franson recommended the implementation of the procedures regardless of the outcome. 
 
Kathy Barnard stated the Historic District Ordinance is important to the Town. 
 
Kristi Ginter questioned whether the Board could make no recommendation. 
 
Kathy Barnard replied no. 
 

 

It was moved by Stacie Jo Pope and seconded by Chris Franson to not recommend the Petition 
Warrant Article to Abolish the Historic District Commission.  Chris Franson, Kathy Barnard, Stacie Jo 
Pope voted in favor.  Fae Moore opposed. Jennifer Haskell abstained.  The motion passed. 

Linda Murray stated the BOS and Budget Committee are placing the vote tally on the ballot and questioned 
whether the Board has considered such. 
 
WORK SESSION 
 Wolfeboro Clocktower, LLC 

Rob Houseman stated the Board has been advised by Wolfeboro Clocktower, LLC that the project will 
not be constructed and is seeking a reimbursement of their financial security. He stated the applicant 
has submitted a pre and post drainage construction analysis and such has been reviewed by HE 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  9 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

Bergeron and the Public Works Director; noting Dave Ford concurs with the findings that the post 
development impact upon completion of the loaming and seeding of the site in total does not increase 
the predevelopment drainage impact and recommends the release of the financial security.  He stated 
Dave Ford noted the redevelopment of the parcel at a future date will need to address the drainage of 
the site including possible offsite improvements.  He stated he questioned Town Counsel whether the 
Board could call the bond and Town Counsel replied no, noting the approval cannot stay in place 
without the bond.  He questioned Town Counsel as to whether the Board could impose conditions on 
the revocation that any subsequent development would need to comply with the offsite improvements; 
noting Town Counsel opined the Board does not have the authority to do so.  He stated the site is 
constrained and any future development must comply with the Town’s regulations.  He recommended 
the release of the financial security in the amount of $358,857 and consider imposing a fixed time 
frame in which the fence would be removed and the site would be regraded and restored. 
 
Kristi Ginter questioned whether the applicant intends to disclose there is a foundation on the property. 
 
Peter Alden replied yes. 
 

 

It was moved by Stacie Jo Pope and seconded by Chris Franson to rescind the Site Plan 
approval for  Wolfeboro Clocktower, LLC, Case #200814, and based on the guidance of legal 
counsel and recommendations of the Town’s consulting engineer, grant the partial release of 
financial security in the amount of $358,857, amount to be retained being $17,770 for loaming 
and seeding of the site and removal of the fence by June 15, 2010. All members voted in favor.  
The motion passed. 

Linda Murray verified there is no condition on the property and the property can be sold; noting the 
drainage would be addressed at the time of new development.  
 

 

 

It was moved by Stacie Jo Pope and seconded by Chris Franson to adjourn the January 19, 2010 
Wolfeboro Planning Board meeting.  All members voted in favor. 

**Next Board meeting scheduled for 2/9/10. 
**The Board cancelled their 2/16/10 meeting. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:34 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Lee Ann Keathley 
Lee Ann Keathley 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  10 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  11 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  12 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  13 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  14 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  15 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  16 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  17 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  18 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  19 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  20 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  21 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  22 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  23 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  24 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  25 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  26 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  27 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  28 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  29 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  30 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  31 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  32 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  33 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  34 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  35 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 
 
 

 



Wolfeboro Planning Board  36 
January 19, 2010 minutes 

 
 


